

Assessment Engineer's Report

GENESEE AVENUE & NORTH TORREY PINES ROAD MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

Annual Update for Fiscal Year 2017

under the provisions of the

San Diego Maintenance Assessment District Procedural Ordinance of the San Diego Municipal Code

Prepared For City of San Diego, California

Prepared By

EFS Engineering, Inc. P.O. Box 22370 San Diego, CA 92192-2370 (858) 752-3490

June 2016

CITY OF SAN DIEGO

<u>Mayor</u>

Kevin Faulconer

City Council Members

Sherri Lightner District 1 (Council President) Mark Kersey District 5

Lorie Zapf District 2

Todd Gloria District 3

Myrtle Cole District 4 Chris Cate District 6

Scott Sherman District 7

David Alvarez District 8

Marti Emerald District 9 (Council President Pro Tem)

City Attorney

Jan Goldsmith

Chief Operating Officer

Scott Chadwick

City Clerk

Elizabeth Maland

Independent Budget Analyst

Andrea Tevlin

City Engineer

James Nagelvoort

Assessment Engineer

EFS Engineering, Inc.

Table of Contents

Assessment Engineer's Report
Genesee Avenue & North Torrey Pines Road Maintenance Assessment District
Preamble1
Executive Summary2
Background
District Proceedings for Fiscal Year 2017
Bond Declaration4
District Boundary4
Project Description4
Separation of General and Special Benefits5
City Standard6
External Benefits6
Cost Estimate6
Estimated Costs
Annual Cost-Indexing7
Method of Apportionment7
Estimated Benefit of Improvements7
UC Regents In-Lieu Maintenance8
Apportionment Methodology8
Land Use Factor
Benefit Factor11
Sample Calculations
Summary Results14

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A: Boundary Map
Exhibit B: Estimated Annual Expense, Revenues & Reserves
Exhibit C: Assessment Roll

Assessment Engineer's Report Genesee Avenue & North Torrey Pines Road Maintenance Assessment District

Preamble

Pursuant to the provisions of the "San Diego Maintenance Assessment District Procedural Ordinance" (being Division 2, Article 5, Chapter VI of the San Diego Municipal Code), applicable provisions of "Proposition 218" (being Article XIIID of the California Constitution), and provisions of the "Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act" (being California Senate Bill 919) (the aforementioned provisions are hereinafter referred to collectively as "Assessment Law"), and in accordance with the Resolution of Intention, being Resolution No. _, adopted by the CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, in connection with the proceedings for the GENESEE AVENUE & NORTH TORREY PINES ROAD MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as "District"), EFS ENGINEERING, INC., as Assessment Engineer to the City of San Diego for these proceedings, submits herewith this report for the District as required by Assessment Law.

PRELIMINARY APPROVAL BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA, ON THE _____ DAY OF _____, 2016.

Elizabeth Maland, CITY CLERK CITY OF SAN DIEGO STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FINAL APPROVAL BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA, ON THE _____ DAY OF _____, 2016.

Elizabeth Maland, CITY CLERK CITY OF SAN DIEGO STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Executive Summary

Project:

Genesee Avenue & North Torrey Pines Road Maintenance Assessment District

Apportionment Method:	Equivalent Benefit Unit (EBU)						
	FY 2016	FY 2017 (1)	Maximum ⁽²⁾ Authorized				
Total Parcels Assessed:	112	112					
Total Estimated Assessment:	\$0.00	\$131,268					
Total Number of EBUs:	5,248.72	5,248.72					
Zone 1	4,474.84	4,474.84					
Zone 2	773.88	773.88					
Assessment per EBU:							
Zone 1	\$0.00	\$27.00	\$139.33 ⁽³⁾				
Zone 2	\$0.00	\$13.50	\$69.67 ⁽³⁾				

⁽¹⁾ FY 2017 is the City's Fiscal Year 2017, which begins July 1, 2016 and ends June 30, 2017. Total Parcels Assessed, Total Estimated Assessment, and Total Number of EBUs may vary from prior fiscal year values due to parcel changes and/or land use re-classifications.

(2) Maximum authorized annual amounts subject to cost-indexing provisions as set forth in this Assessment Engineer's Report.

⁽³⁾ Prior fiscal year's maximum authorized annual assessment increased by cost-indexing factor of 5.45%.

Annual Cost-Indexing:	The maximum authorized assessment rate has been increased based on the approved annual cost-indexing provisions.
Bonds:	No bonds will be issued in connection with this District.

Background

The Genesee Avenue & North Torrey Pines Road Maintenance Assessment District (District) is generally bounded by Torrey Pines State Reserve to the north and west, Genesee Avenue and Salk Institute Road to the south, and Interstate 5 to the east. The District includes those parcels that receive access from the improved stretches of Genesee Avenue and North Torrey Pines Road, including the following collector streets: Callan Road, Science Park Road, John Jay Hopkins Drive, Science Center Drive, and Torrey Pines Scenic Drive. The general purpose of the District is to fund defined improvements and activities within the District.

Many of the District improvements were installed as part of a City funded capital improvement project that realigned and improved the intersection of Genesee Avenue and North Torrey Pines Road, the two primary streets serving the area. The intersection of Genesee Avenue and North Torrey Pines Road is a primary gateway to the Torrey Pines mesa. District landscaping was required to be maintained by a private contractor for a prescribed establishment period prior to becoming eligible for inclusion in the District. This establishment period has since ended, and much of the improvements are in need of renewal and maintenance at this time.

The City retained Boyle Engineering Corporation to prepare an Assessment Engineer's Report for Fiscal Year 2007 and beyond. The Assessment Engineer's Report was approved and assessments confirmed in Fiscal Year 2007.

District Proceedings for Fiscal Year 2017

This District is authorized and administered under the provisions of the "San Diego Maintenance Assessment District Procedural Ordinance" (being Division 2, Article 5, Chapter VI of the San Diego Municipal Code), applicable provisions of "Proposition 218" (being Article XIIID of the California Constitution), and provisions of the "Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act" (being California Senate Bill 919) (the aforementioned provisions are hereinafter referred to collectively as "Assessment Law"). This report has been prepared in compliance with Assessment Law.

The purpose of the proposed proceedings and this Assessment Engineer's Report is to update the District budget and assessments for Fiscal Year 2017, and authorize the continued levy of assessments for the life of the District. The Fiscal Year 2017 assessments proposed within this Assessment Engineer's Report are equal to or less than the maximum authorized assessment. Therefore, the vote requirements of Section 4 of Article XIIID do not apply to these proceedings.

A public hearing will be scheduled where public testimony will be heard by the Council, and the Council may, at its discretion, adopt a resolution ordering the levy of assessments for the life of the District, and collection of the Fiscal Year 2017 proposed assessments.

Bond Declaration

No bonds will be issued in connection with this District.

District Boundary

The District is generally bounded by Torrey Pines State Reserve to the north and west, Genesee Avenue and Salk Institute Road to the south, and Interstate 5 to the east. The District includes those parcels that receive access from the improved Genesee Avenue and North Torrey Pines Road corridors, including the following collector streets: Callan Road, Science Park Road, John Jay Hopkins Drive, Science Center Drive, and Torrey Pines Scenic Drive. For benefit apportionment purposes, the District has been divided into two zones.

The Boundary Map and Assessment Diagram for the District are on file in the Maintenance Assessment Districts section of the Park and Recreation Department of the City of San Diego and by reference is made a part of this report. The Boundary Map and Assessment Diagram for the District are available for public inspection during normal business hours. A reduced copy of the Boundary Map is included as **Exhibit A**.

Project Description

The proposed assessments will be used to fund defined improvements and activities within the District. The activities include maintenance and servicing of three improvement areas, generally described as follows:

- *Genesee Avenue* Median and right-of-way improvements along Genesee Avenue from Interstate 5 to North Torrey Pines Road.
- ♦ North Torrey Pines Road Median and right-of-way improvements along North Torrey Pines Road from Torrey Pines Scenic Drive to the northern boundary of the District, including the Callan Road interchange near the entrance to Torrey Pines Golf Course.
- ♦ Campus Right-of-Way Right-of-way improvements along Genesee Avenue and North Torrey Pines Road fronting the

University of California, San Diego (UCSD) campus.

The maintenance areas are generally shown in **Figure 1**. For additional detail as to location and type of improvements, please refer to District mapping of maintenance elements on file with the City Park and Recreation Department.

Activities include, but are not limited to, the following: sweeping, weeding, and removal of debris; mulching and replanting; pruning of planted medians; yearly pruning of eucalyptus trees; and irrigation inspection and repair. The District may also fund minor capital improvements to the extent such improvements are consistent with the apportionment methodology.

The engineering drawings for the improvements to be maintained by the District are on file at Map and Records in the Development Services Department. The improvements and activities provided by the District will be maintained in accordance with specifications and contracts on file with the Park and Recreation Department. These documents are available for public inspection during normal business hours.

Separation of General and Special Benefits

The identified improvements and activities provide benefits to the parcels located within the District. Some of these benefits are "special benefits," benefits that are above and beyond the City's standard level of service, and exclusive of those "general benefits" provided to the public at large or properties located outside the District. Under Assessment Law, only "special benefits" are assessable. As such, isolation and quantification of the "special benefits" associated with the improvements and activities are paramount, and illustrated in the following equations:

Special Benefits = Total Benefits – General Benefits

General Benefits = City Standard + External Benefits

Special Benefits = Total Benefits – [City Standard + External Benefits]

In these equations, "Total Benefits" refers to the cost of providing the total benefits of the improvements and activities; "City Standard" represents the cost of providing the City's standard level of service; and "External Benefits" refers to the cost of those additional benefits accruing to the public at large or properties located outside the District. In order to isolate the "Special Benefits," it is necessary to



quantify the amount of "General Benefits" associated with the improvements and activities.

City Standard

As a "general benefit" (not funded by assessments), the District will continue to receive the standard level of service provided to the public at large under City-funded and administered programs for maintenance and servicing of public facilities and improvements (e.g., medians, open space, street lights, street trees, sidewalks, parks, etc.), including street sweeping and graffiti removal on public property. Consistent with City policy for the public at large, the City will provide the District with standard service levels and annual contributions from the Gas Tax Fund for median maintenance (28.67¢ per square foot of landscaped median and 6.59¢ per square foot of hardscaped median). These levels of service and cost allocations, reviewed and adjusted annually by the City, are "general benefits" administered by the District.

External Benefits

Assessment Law prohibits levying assessments to pay for "general benefits" conferred to the public at large or properties located outside the District. Based on a review of the spatial limits of the District and the improvements and activities, it has been determined that the improvements and activities have the potential to confer benefits to others outside the District.

It is estimated as much as 4.6% of the total benefit (in excess of the City standard) may accrue to the public at large or properties located outside the District (with an estimated 0.0% accruing directly to properties located outside the District, and the remaining 4.6% accruing to the general public as indirect/incidental beneficiaries passing through the District or utilizing District-provided amenities). The estimated costs associated with these "general benefits" have been quantified and will not be funded by assessments.

Cost Estimate

Estimated Costs

Estimated Fiscal Year 2017 annual expenses, revenues, reserves, and assessments (provided by the City) are included as **Exhibit B** hereto.

Annual Cost-Indexing

With the passage of Proposition 218, any proposed increase in assessments must be placed for approval before the property owners by a mail ballot and a public hearing process, similar to these proceedings. A majority of ballots received must be affirmative for the City Council to confirm and levy the increased assessments. For small assessment districts or districts with relatively low dollar assessments, the cost of an engineer's report, balloting, and the public hearing process can potentially exceed the total cost of the increase. These incidental costs of the proceedings can be added to the assessments, resulting in even higher assessments.

Indexing assessments annually to the San Diego Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers (SDCPI-U) plus 3%, as approved by the District property owners in Fiscal Year 2007, allows for minor increases for normal maintenance and operating cost escalation without incurring the costs of the Proposition 218 ballot proceedings. Any significant change in the assessment initiated by an increase in service provided or other significant changes to the District would still require the Proposition 218 proceedings and property owner approval.

The maximum authorized assessment established in the Fiscal Year 2007 proceedings are authorized to be indexed (increased or decreased) annually by the factor published in the SDCPI-U plus 3%. The annual change in second half SDCPI-U values, as compiled by the *U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics* (see <u>www.bls.gov</u>), for the prior year period was from 265.039 to 271.526 (a 2.45% increase). In accordance with the approved cost-indexing provisions, the maximum authorized assessment rates contained within this Assessment Engineer's Report have been increased by 5.45%.

Method of Apportionment

Estimated Benefit of Improvements

The Transportation Element of the University Community Plan (Community Plan) and the general policy recommendations found in the City's Progress Guide & General Plan (General Plan) establish several goals and guidelines for the planned development of the community. The proposed improvements and activities are consistent with these goals. The City's General Plan and Subarea Plan support the establishment of community-based improvement and maintenance districts, such as this District, to fund enhanced improvements and activities. The proposed District improvements are generally located along the major transit corridors. Genesee Avenue and North Torrey Pines Road are the backbone of the street network within the District. They serve as the primary access routes for inter-community and intra-community trips. All parcels within the District benefit from the enhancement of these streets and the enhanced community image provided by the District improvements and activities. The intersection of Genesee Avenue and North Torrey Pines Road is a primary gateway to the Torrey Pines mesa.

The District has been divided into two zones (as shown in **Exhibit A**) for benefit apportionment purposes. The two zones are generally described as follows:

- ♦ Zone 1 Encompasses the entire District with the exception of the Science Center Drive area (Zone 2).
- ◆ Zone 2 Encompasses the Science Center Drive area of the District, located adjacent to Interstate 5. Parcels within Zone 2 receive a lesser degree of benefit than parcels in Zone 1 given their relative proximity to the Interstate 5 corridor and physical separation from the Torrey Pines mesa. Accordingly, Zone 2 parcels have been assigned a reduced (50%) assessment rate.

UC Regents In-Lieu Maintenance

The Regents of the University of California (UC Regents) own property located within the District. To foster an aesthetically pleasing environment, the UC Regents have historically maintained and will continue to maintain right-of-way improvements along Genesee Avenue and North Torrey Pines Road (see "Landscape Maintenance Area" shown in **Figure 2**). These identified improvements and activities, located within the defined District maintenance corridor, are of like character and nature to the improvements and activities funded by the assessments. The estimated cost of maintaining these identified improvements is equal to or in excess of the proportional degree of benefit conferred upon UC Regents properties from the improvements and activities funded by the assessments. Consistent with the apportionment methodology, and recognizing the reciprocal and commensurate maintenance commitment, the UC Regents will not be assessed as part of the District.

Apportionment Methodology

The total cost associated with District improvement and activities will be assessed to the various parcels in the District in proportion to the estimated Equivalent Benefit Units (EBUs) assigned to a parcel in

UCSD NORTH TORREY PINES/GENESEE (AREAS OF UCSD MAINTENANCE)



relationship to the total EBUs of all the parcels in the District. EBUs for each parcel have been determined as a function of two factors -a Land Use Factor and a Benefit Factor - related as shown in the following equation:

EBUs = (Acres or Units) x Land Use Factor x Benefit Factor

Each of these factors is discussed below. Parcels determined to receive no benefit from maintenance of the District improvements and activities have been assigned zero (0) EBUs.

Land Use Factor

Since the proposed District improvements and activities are primarily associated with the Transportation Element of City's General Plan and Community Plan, trip generation rates for various land use categories (as previously established by the City's Transportation Planning Section) have been used as the primary basis for the development of Land Use Factors. While these trip generation rates address vehicular trips, they are also considered to approximately reflect relative trip generation for other modes of transportation (e.g., pedestrian trips, bicycle trips, etc.), and are considered the best available information for these other transportation modes.

Trip generation rates provide the required nexus and basis for assigning relative proportionality of potential benefit to the various land use/zoning classifications (as defined by the City's Municipal Code) within the District. Land use/zoning classifications have been grouped with averaged trip generation rates assigned to establish the Land Use Factors as shown in **Table 1**.

Land Use/Zoning	Code	Land Use Factor ⁽¹⁾
Residential – Single Family (detached)	SFD	1.0 per dwelling unit
Residential – Condominium	CND	0.7 per dwelling unit
Residential – Multi-Family & Apartment	MFR	0.7 per dwelling unit
Commercial – Office & Retail	COM	45.0 per acre
Educational – College & University	ECU	9.0 per acre
Golf Course	GLF	0.80 per acre
Hospital & Medical Facility	HMF	30.0 per acre
Hotel	HTL	15.0 per acre
Industrial & Institutional	IND	15.0 per acre
Open Space (designated)	OSP	0 per acre
Park – Undeveloped	PKU	0.5 per acre
Recreational Facility	REC	3.0 per acre
Street/Roadway	STR	0 per acre
Regents of the University of California	UCR	0.0 per acre ⁽²⁾
Undevelopable	UND	0 per acre

TABLE 1: Land Use Factors

⁽¹⁾ Proportional to trip generation rates contained in the City of San Diego *Trip Generation Manual* (May 2003).

(2) Excluded from assessment based on proportional in-lieu maintenance commitment (see "UC Regents In-Lieu Maintenance" section of this report).

> Designated open space serves primarily to preserve natural landscape and habitat. While access for study and passive recreation is often permitted, these activities are allowed only to the extent they are consistent with the primary purpose of natural preservation. Since this land is essentially "unused" in the customary terms of land use (which relate to human use and development), the trip generation rate is zero. Therefore, the designated open space itself receives no benefit from the District improvements and activities and has been assigned a Land Use Factor of zero.

> While those traveling the streets and roadways visually enjoy the enhanced improvements and activities being maintained by the District, the actual benefit accrues to the lands at the origins and destinations of their trips, not to the lands of the streets and roadways, themselves. Accordingly, the Streets/Roadways category receives no benefit and has been assigned a Land Use Factor of zero.

> The Recreational Facility category includes those parcels that consist primarily of concentrated facilities, such as swimming pools, gymnasiums, racquetball clubs, etc. Recreational facilities of a more dispersed nature (e.g., parks, golf courses, etc.) have been categorized separately.

Benefit Factor

The Land Use Factor described above establishes a proportionality of relative intensity of use (or potential use) for the various parcels of land within the District. It does not address the relationship of this use to the specific improvements and activities to be maintained by the District. This relationship is reflected in the Benefit Factor utilized in the assessment methodology.

In determining the Benefit Factor for each land use category, the subcomponents of the benefits of District improvements and activities may include some or all of the following: public safety, view corridors and aesthetics, enhancement of commercial identity, drainage corridors, and recreational potential. The subcomponents used for this District are public safety and aesthetics.

As Benefit Factors and their subcomponents are intended to reflect the particular relationships between specific land uses within a district and the specific improvements and activities maintained by the district, Benefit Factors will generally vary from one district to another, based on the specific character and nature of the applicable land uses and District improvements and activities. For a given land use, the overall Benefit Factor is equal to the sum of the subcomponent values. If a land use category receives no benefit from a subcomponent, then a value of zero is assigned to that subcomponent. A composite Benefit Factor of 1.0 indicates that full benefit is received. A value less than 1.0 indicates that less than full benefit is received.

The applicable benefit subcomponents and resultant composite Benefit Factors determined for the various Land Use/Zoning categories within this District are as shown in **Table 2**.

Land Use/Zoning	Public Safety (Max. 0.4)	Aesthetics (Max. 0.6)	Composite Benefit Factor (Max. 1.0)
Residential – All	0.4	0.6	1.0
Commercial – Office & Retail	0.4	0.4	0.8
Educational – College & University	0.4	0.2	0.6
Golf Course	0.4	0.0	0.4
Hospital & Medical Facility	0.4	0.4	0.8
Hotel	0.4	0.4	0.8
Industrial & Institutional	0.4	0.4	0.8
Open Space (designated)	0.4	0.0	0.4
Park – Undeveloped	0.4	0.0	0.4
Recreational Facility	0.4	0.0	0.4
Street/Roadway	0.4	0.0	0.4
Regents of the University of California	0.0	0.0	0.0 (1)
Undevelopable	0.4	0.0	0.4

TABLE 2: Benefit Factors by Land Use

⁽¹⁾ Excluded from assessment based on proportional in-lieu maintenance commitment (see "UC Regents In-Lieu Maintenance" section of this report).

Public Safety. All land uses are considered to receive the maximum available benefit from the public safety aspect of the District improvements and activities Public safety is essential to all land uses, and even to lands, such as designated open space, held in stewardship with only incidental human use.

Aesthetics. The degree of benefit received from the aesthetic aspect of the District improvements and activities varies among land use categories. Generally, by nature of their use, residential lands receive the greatest benefit from the reduced traffic congestion, reduced noise levels, greater separation from traffic and generally more tranquil environment provided by landscaped and hardscaped medians and right-of-ways.

Commercial, industrial and institutional uses, on the other hand, often thrive on higher densities, greater traffic access, and a higher level of activity in the vicinity of their enterprises. These uses, accordingly, receive a lesser degree of benefit from the general insulation and separation provided by the aesthetic elements of District improvements and activities.

Lands in the Golf Course, Open Space, Parks, Recreational

Facility, Street/Roadway and Undevelopable categories are considered to receive no significant benefit from the aesthetic elements of District improvements and activities, as enhanced aesthetic quality of other lands in their vicinity does not affect their function, use, or value.

Sample Calculations

As described above, the number of Equivalent Benefit Units (EBUs) assigned to each parcel in the District has been calculated based on each parcel's land use and the identified apportionment factors, as shown in the following equation:

EBUs = (Acres or Units) x Land Use Factor x Benefit Factor

Shown below are sample EBU calculations for several common land uses found in the District.

- 5-acre Hotel Property EBUs = 5.00 acres x 15.00 x 0.80 = 60.00 EBUs
- **1-acre Industrial & Institutional Property** EBUs = 1.00 acres x 15.00 x 0.80 = 12.00 EBUs
- 10-acre Golf Course Property EBUs = 10.00 acres x 0.80 x 0.40 = 3.20 EBUs

The total assessment for each parcel in the District is based on the calculated EBUs for the parcel and the applicable unit assessment rate for zone in which the parcel is located, as shown in the following equation:

Total Assessment = Total EBUs x Unit Assessment Rate

Based on the above formula, the EBUs calculated for each property, can be found in the Assessment Roll (**Exhibit C**).

Summary Results

The District Boundary is presented in Exhibit A.

An estimate of the costs of the improvements and activities provided by the District is included as **Exhibit B** to this report.

The assessment methodology utilized is as described in the text of this report. Based on this methodology, the EBUs and Fiscal Year 2017 District assessment for each parcel were calculated and are shown in the Assessment Roll (**Exhibit C**).

Each lot or parcel of land within the District has been identified by unique County Assessor's Parcel Number on the Assessment Roll and the Boundary Map and Assessment Diagram referenced herein. The net assessment for each parcel for Fiscal Year 2017 can be found on the Assessment Roll.

This report has been prepared and respectfully submitted by:

EFS ENGINEERING, INC.



Eugene F. Shank

Eugen F. Shank, PE

C 52792

Sharon F. Risse

I, ______, as CITY CLERK of the CITY OF SAN DIEGO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA, do hereby certify that the Assessment as shown on the Assessment Roll, together with the Assessment Diagram, both of which are incorporated into this report, were filed in my office on the _____ day of ______, 2016.

Elizabeth Maland, CITY CLERK CITY OF SAN DIEGO STATE OF CALIFORNIA

I, ______, as CITY CLERK of the CITY OF SAN DIEGO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA, do hereby certify that the foregoing Assessment, together with the Assessment Diagram incorporated into this report, was approved and confirmed by the CITY COUNCIL of said City on the _____ day of ______, 2016.

Elizabeth Maland, CITY CLERK CITY OF SAN DIEGO STATE OF CALIFORNIA

EXHIBIT A





EXHIBIT B

EXHIBIT B

Park and Recreation Department - Open Space Division Maintenance Assessment Districts Program Summary of Fiscal Year 2017 (07-01-16 to 06-30-17) Budget

Genesee Avenue & North Torrey Pines Road Maintenance Assessment District

Fund 200068

	FY 2015 Unaudited Actuals			FY 2016 Estimate		FY 2017 Proposed	
District Expenses							
Supplies - Nursery Stock, Fertilizer; Mulch (SLA w/ESD)	\$	-	\$	4,000.00	\$	4,000.00	
Services (Contracts)							
Landscape Maintenance Contract (PA 4600001547) - Contemporary Design (Expires 12-16-2017)		54,799.32	\$	127,873.48 ⁽¹		134,267.15	
Landscape Maintenance - (Landscape Project Phase 2 - N. Torrey Pines Rd.)	\$	-	\$	30,000.00	\$	-	
Landscape Maintenance - Mulch Application	\$	2,656.12	\$	10,000.00	\$	6,000.00	
Planting Projects	\$	11,646.88	\$	5,000.00	\$	40,000.00	
Tree Trimming Services	\$	6,300.00	\$	35,000.00	\$	50,000.00	
Concrete Repair	\$	-	\$	23,000.00	\$	23,000.00	
Utilities: Water / Storm Drain / Electrical	\$	3,629.51	\$	4,315.00 ⁽²		6,519.33	
Special Districts Administration	\$	12,260.00	\$	12,260.00	\$	12,505.20	
Vehicle Usage and Assignment	\$	1,555.00	\$	1,710.50	\$	1,796.03	
.20 FTE Grounds Maintenance Manager - Contract Administrator (Total Labor & Fringe)	\$ \$	23,153.00	<u></u>	22,731.91	\$ \$	23,186.54	
SUBTOTAL	Þ	115,999.83	\$	275,890.89	Þ	301,274.25	
TOTAL EXPENSE	\$	115,999.83	\$	275,890.89	\$	301,274.25	
District Revenues							
Special Assessments	\$	-	\$	-	\$	131,267.90	
Interest Earnings	\$	2,503.98	\$	1,200.00	\$	1,200.00	
City Contributions	•	0 500 00	•	0.440.00	•	050.00	
General Benefit Offset, 4.6%	\$	9,529.33	\$	6,442.92	\$	253.00	
Gas Tax Fund ⁽³⁾	\$	85,554.00	\$	85,554.00	\$	87,836.00	
TOTAL REVENUE	\$	97,587.31	\$	93,196.92	\$	220,556.90	
District Reserves							
Beginning Fund Balance	\$	429,247.41	\$	410,792.06	\$	228,098.09	
Change in Fund Balance	\$	(18,455.35)	\$	(182,693.97)	\$	(80,717.35)	
Year End Operating Reserves	\$	410,792.06	\$	228,098.09	\$	147,380.75	

⁽¹⁾ Increased budget in FY16 Landscape Maintenance Contract due to additional areas being added to this district.

⁽²⁾ Increased budget in FY16 Utilities due to additional areas being added to this district.

⁽³⁾ City Contributions each Fiscal Year are subject to change pending Council approval of new rate per square foot/acreage.

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT C - Assessment Roll (Fiscal Year 2017) Genesee Avenue & North Torrey Pines Road Maintenance Assessment District

Parcel	Acres/	Land	Zone	Apportionm	ent Factors	Total	Unit Cost	FY 2017 ⁽⁴⁾		
Number	Units (1)	Use (2)	Number	Land Use (2)	Benefit ⁽³⁾	EBUs	(\$/EBU)	Assessment	Owner Name	
310 010 06 00	4.21	GLF	1	0.80	0.40	1.35	\$27.00	\$36.36	City Of San Diego(Torrey Pines Park)	
310 010 07 00	86.70	GLF	1	0.80	0.40	27.74	\$27.00	\$749.08	City Of San Diego	
310 110 13 00	8.68	ECU	1	9.00	0.60	46.87	\$27.00	\$1,265.54	National University	
310 110 14 00	2.72	IND	1	15.00	0.80	32.64	\$27.00	\$881.28	National University	
310 110 17 00	7.88	IND	1	15.00	0.80	94.56	\$27.00	\$2,553.12	H C P Torrey Pines Llc	
310 110 18 00	2.11	IND	1	15.00	0.80	25.32	\$27.00	\$683.64	H C P Life Science Reit Inc	
310 110 19 00	4.40	IND	1	15.00	0.80	52.80	\$27.00	\$1,425.60	A R E-S D Region No 24 L L C	
340 010 29 00	3.87	IND	1	15.00	0.80	46.44	\$27.00	\$1,253.88	Alliance Diversified Holdings L L C	
340 010 30 00	3.55	IND	1	15.00	0.80	42.60	\$27.00	\$1,150.20	Slough Torreyana L L C	
340 010 31 00	14.25	OSP	1	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	State Of California Park	
340 010 34 00	6.22	IND	1	15.00	0.80	74.64	\$27.00	\$2,015.28	Are-Sd Region No 17 Llc	
340 010 37 00	4.09	IND	1	15.00	0.80	49.08	\$27.00	\$1,325.16	B M R-Torreyana L L C	
340 010 38 00	6.93	IND	1	15.00	0.80	83.16	\$27.00	\$2,245.32	Slough Tpsp Llc	
340 010 39 00	10.05	IND	1	15.00	0.80	120.60	\$27.00	\$3,256.20	Slough Tpsp Llc	
340 010 41 00	12.69	HMF	1	30.00	0.80	304.56	\$27.00	\$8,223.12	Scripps Research Institute <lf> Scripps Health</lf>	
340 010 42 00	5.69	HMF	1	30.00	0.80	136.56	\$27.00	\$3,687.12	Scripps Health	
340 010 43 00	6.77	IND	1	15.00	0.80	81.24	\$27.00	\$2,193.48	Are-Sd Region No 35 L L C	
340 010 44 00	5.03	IND	1	15.00	0.80	60.36	\$27.00		H C P Callan Road L L C	
340 010 45 00	3.18	IND	1	15.00	0.80	38.16	\$27.00	\$1,030.32	City Of San Diego	
340 010 46 00	2.41	IND	1	15.00	0.80	28.92	\$27.00	\$780.84	Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute	
340 010 47 00	0.15	IND	1	15.00	0.80	1.80	\$27.00	\$48.60	Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute	
340 010 48 00	1.51	IND	1	15.00	0.80	18.12	\$27.00	\$489.24	Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute	
340 010 49 00	0.80	IND	1	15.00	0.80	9.60	\$27.00	\$259.20	Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute	
340 010 50 00	2.51	IND	1	15.00	0.80	30.12	\$27.00	\$813.24	S N H Medical Office Properties Trust	
340 010 51 00 340 010 52 00	1.49 2.23	IND IND	1 1	15.00	0.80	17.88 26.76	\$27.00 \$27.00	\$482.76 \$722.52	S N H Medical Office Properties Trust	
340 010 52 00	1.73	IND	1	15.00 15.00	0.80	20.76	\$27.00	\$560.52	S N H Medical Office Properties Trust	
340 010 53 00	1.73	IND	1	15.00	0.80	23.64	\$27.00	\$638.28	Pharmingen Pharmingen	
340 010 34 00	11.38	HTL	1	15.00	0.80	136.56	\$27.00	\$3,687.12	City Of San Diego	
340 011 09 00	243.20	GLF	1	0.80	0.40	77.82	\$27.00	\$2,101.24	City Of San Diego	
340 011 09 00	3.49	HMF	1	30.00	0.80	83.76	\$27.00	\$2,261.52	City Of San Diego	
340 011 09 00	6.05	HTL	1	15.00	0.80	72.60	\$27.00	\$1,960.20	City Of San Diego	
340 011 10 00	3.50	IND	1	15.00	0.80	42.00	\$27.00	\$1,134.00	City Of San Diego	
340 012 01 00	5.54	IND	1	15.00	0.80	66.48	\$27.00	\$1,794.96	A R E-10933 North Torrey Pines Llc	
340 012 02 00	3.56	IND	1	15.00	0.80	42.72	\$27.00	\$1,153.44	A R E-S D Region No 27 L L C	
340 012 03 00	2.64	IND	1	15.00	0.80	31.68	\$27.00	\$855.36	A R E-10933 North Torrey Pines Llc	
340 012 04 00	2.74	IND	1	15.00	0.80	32.88	\$27.00	\$887.76	A R E-10933 North Torrey Pines Llc	
340 012 05 00	1.50	OSP	1	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	A R E-10933 North Torrey Pines Llc	
340 020 08 00	3.67	OSP	2	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$13.50	\$0.00	City Of San Diego	
340 020 29 00	0.65	IND	1	15.00	0.80	7.80	\$27.00	\$210.60	Hopkins Properties Inc	
340 020 30 00	0.37	IND	1	15.00	0.80	4.44	\$27.00	\$119.88	Hopkins Properties Inc	
340 020 32 00	4.11	IND	1	15.00	0.80	49.32	\$27.00	\$1,331.64	Genesee Properties Inc	
340 020 43 00	58.98	IND	1	15.00	0.80	707.76	\$27.00	\$19,109.52	Genesee Properties Inc	
340 020 44 00	41.92	OSP	2	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$13.50	\$0.00	Torrey Pines Science Center Assn For Unit No 2	
340 020 45 00	84.05	OSP	1	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	Torrey Pines Science Center Assn For Unit No 1	
340 170 01 00	2.01	IND	1	15.00	0.80	24.12	\$27.00	\$651.24	B M R-3525 John Hopkins Court L L C	
340 170 02 00	2.97	IND	1	15.00	0.80	35.64	\$27.00	\$962.28	B M R-John Hopkins Court L L C	
340 170 06 00	1.78	IND	1	15.00	0.80	21.36	\$27.00	\$576.72	A R E-3535/3565 General Atomics Court Llc	
340 170 07 00	1.61	IND	1	15.00	0.80	19.32	\$27.00	\$521.64 \$401.76	A R E-3535/3565 General Atomics Court Llc	
340 170 08 00	1.24		1	15.00	0.80	14.88	\$27.00	\$401.76 \$480.24	A R E-3535/3565 General Atomics Court Llc	
340 170 11 00	1.51		1	15.00	0.80	18.12	\$27.00	\$489.24 \$974.90	A R E John Hopkins Court L L C	
340 170 12 00	2.70	IND IND	1 1	15.00	0.80	32.40	\$27.00 \$27.00	\$874.80 \$1.169.64	A R E John Hopkins Court L L C	
340 170 13 00 340 180 01 00	3.61 3.45	IND	1	15.00 15.00		43.32 41.40	\$27.00 \$27.00	\$1,169.64 \$1,117.80	Scripps Research Institute T P S C Iv L L C	
340 180 01 00	3.45 2.75	IND	2	15.00	0.80	33.00	\$27.00 \$13.50	\$1,117.80 \$445.50	B M R-10240 Science Center Drive L P	
340 180 02 00	2.75	IND	2	15.00	0.80	30.24	\$13.50	\$445.50 \$408.24	Bin R-10240 Science Center Drive Lip Bmr 10255 Science Center Drive Lic	
340 180 03 00	2.52	IND	2	15.00	0.80	35.88	\$13.50	\$408.24	TPSCIXLLC	
340 180 08 00	2.99	IND	2	15.00	0.80	33.12	\$13.50	\$447.12	Torrey Pines Science Center Ltd Ptnshp	
340 180 07 00	6.23	IND	2	15.00	0.80	74.76	\$13.50	\$1,009.26	Pfizer Inc	
340 180 21 00	13.93	OSP	2	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$13.50	\$0.00	Torrey Pines Science Center Assn For Unit No 1	
	. 0.00			5.00	55	5.00	+.0.00	20.00		

EXHIBIT C - Assessment Roll (Fiscal Year 2017) Genesee Avenue & North Torrey Pines Road Maintenance Assessment District

Parcel	Acres/	Land	Zone	Apportionm	ent Factors	Total	Unit Cost	FY 2017 ⁽⁴⁾	
Number	Units ⁽¹⁾	Use ⁽²⁾	Number	Land Use (2)	Benefit ⁽³⁾	EBUs	(\$/EBU)	Assessment	Owner Name
340 180 22 00	1.56	OSP	2	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$13.50	\$0.00	Torrey Pines Science Center Assn For Unit No 2
340 180 25 00	5.26	IND	2	15.00	0.80	63.12	\$13.50	\$852.12	Lasdk Limited Partnership
340 180 28 00	2.55	IND	2	15.00	0.80	30.60	\$13.50	\$413.10	TPSCIxLLC
340 180 29 00	4.92	IND	2	15.00	0.80	59.04	\$13.50	\$797.04	TPSCIxLLC
340 180 30 00	3.54	IND	2	15.00	0.80	42.48	\$13.50	\$573.48	T P S C Vi Llc
340 180 33 00	5.29	IND	2	15.00	0.80	63.48	\$13.50	\$856.98	Pfizer Inc
340 180 34 00	4.69	IND	2	15.00	0.80	56.28	\$13.50	\$759.78	Walton Torrey Owner C L L C
340 180 35 00	4.88	IND	2	15.00	0.80	58.56	\$13.50	\$790.56	Walton Torrey Owner B L L C
340 180 36 00	2.85	IND	2	15.00	0.80	34.20	\$13.50	\$461.70	Walton Torrey Owner A L L C
340 180 37 00	6.72	IND	2	15.00	0.80	80.64	\$13.50	\$1,088.64	Pfizer Inc
340 180 38 00	2.91	IND	2	15.00	0.80	34.92	\$13.50	\$471.42	Pfizer Inc
340 180 39 00	3.63	IND	2	15.00	0.80	43.56	\$13.50	\$588.06	Pfizer Inc
340 190 03 00	4.05	IND	1	15.00	0.80	48.60	\$27.00	\$1,312.20	Scripps Research Institute
340 190 04 00	10.45	IND	1	15.00	0.80	125.40	\$27.00	\$3,385.80	Scripps Health
340 190 08 00	2.19	IND	1	15.00	0.80	26.28	\$27.00	\$709.56	Scripps Health
340 190 09 00	4.53	IND	1	15.00	0.80	54.36	\$27.00	\$1,467.72	A R E-S D Region No 38 L L C
340 190 10 00	4.37	IND	1	15.00	0.80	52.44	\$27.00	\$1,415.88	Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute
340 190 11 00	1.30	IND	1	15.00	0.80	15.60	\$27.00	\$421.20	Scripps Research Institute
340 190 12 00	4.82	IND	1	15.00	0.80	57.84	\$27.00	\$1,561.68	Scripps Research Institute
340 190 13 00	9.52	IND	1	15.00	0.80	114.24	\$27.00	\$3,084.48	Novartis Institute For Functional Genomics Inc
340 200 01 00	1.86	IND	1	15.00	0.80	22.32	\$27.00	\$602.64	Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute
340 200 02 00	1.59	IND	1	15.00	0.80	19.08	\$27.00	\$515.16	Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute
340 200 03 00	2.00	IND	1	15.00	0.80	24.00	\$27.00	\$648.00	Altman Investment Co L L C
340 200 04 00	3.57	IND	1	15.00	0.80	42.84	\$27.00	\$1,156.68	Bmr-10835 Road To The Cure L L C
340 200 10 00	2.95	IND	1	15.00	0.80	35.40	\$27.00	\$955.80	A R E-S D Region No 23 L L C
340 200 11 00	2.39	IND	1	15.00	0.80	28.68	\$27.00	\$774.36	A R E-S D Region No 23 L L C
340 200 12 00	2.65	IND	1	15.00	0.80	31.80	\$27.00	\$858.60	A R E-S D Region No 23 L L C
340 200 13 00	0.80	REC	1	3.00	0.40	0.96	\$27.00	\$25.92	Lajolla Spectrum Assn
340 200 16 00	9.84	OSP	1	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	Lajolla Spectrum Assn
340 200 17 00	2.60	IND	1	15.00	0.80	31.20	\$27.00	\$842.40	Sanford-Burnham Medical Research Institute
340 200 18 00	2.88	IND	1	15.00	0.80	34.56	\$27.00	\$933.12	Ortho Pharmaceutical Corp
340 200 19 00	9.13	IND	1	15.00	0.80	109.56	\$27.00	\$2,958.12	Ortho Pharmaceutical Corp
340 200 20 00	2.06	IND	1	15.00	0.80	24.72	\$27.00	\$667.44	A R E-S D Region No 23 L L C
342 010 18 00	30.01	OSP	1	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	Regents Of The University Of California
342 010 24 00	264.27	UCR	1	0.00	0.00	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	Regents Of The University Of California
342 010 33 00	7.59	GLF	1	0.80	0.40	2.43	\$27.00	\$65.58	City Of San Diego
342 010 34 00	2.87	IND	1	15.00	0.80	34.44	\$27.00	\$929.88	City Of San Diego
342 010 36 00		GLF	1	0.80	0.40	37.38	\$27.00		City Of San Diego
342 010 42 00	3.09	IND	1	15.00	0.80	37.08	\$27.00	.,	Salk Institute For Biological Studies San Diego California The
342 010 43 00	10.08	IND	1	15.00	0.80	120.96	\$27.00	\$3,265.92	Salk Institute For Biological Studies San Diego California The
342 010 44 00	7.16	OSP	1	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	Salk Institute For Biological Studies San Diego California The
342 010 45 00	6.01	IND	1	15.00	0.80	72.12	\$27.00	\$1,947.24	Salk Institute For Biological Studies San Diego California The
342 110 38 00	23.61	OSP	2	0.00	0.40	0.00	\$13.50	\$0.00	City Of San Diego
342 110 45 00	170.86	UCR	1	0.00	0.00	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	Regents Of The University Of California
342 160 01 00	3.29	IND	1	15.00	0.80	39.48	\$27.00	\$1,065.96	Scripps Research Institute
342 160 02 00	1.99	IND	1	15.00	0.80	23.88	\$27.00	\$644.76	Mullrock 3 Torrey Pines L L C
342 160 03 00	1.96	IND	1	15.00	0.80	23.52	\$27.00	\$635.04	Mullrock 3 Torrey Pines L L C
342 160 04 00	1.46	IND	1	15.00	0.80	17.52	\$27.00	\$473.04	Torrey Executive Centre Ltd
342 160 05 00	2.04	IND	1	15.00	0.80	24.48	\$27.00	\$660.96	Mullrock 3 Torrey Pines L L C
342 160 06 00	1.97	IND	1	15.00	0.80	23.64	\$27.00	\$638.28	Mullrock 3 Torrey Pines L L C
342 160 09 00	1.28	IND	1	15.00	0.80	15.36	\$27.00	\$414.72	Mullrock 3 Torrey Pines L L C
342 160 10 00	2.32	UCR	1	0.00	0.00	0.00	\$27.00	\$0.00	Regents Of The University Of California
			1					<u></u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
TOTAL	-	-	-	-	-	5,248.72		\$131,268	

⁽¹⁾ Applicable units (acres or dwelling units) dependent upon Land Use code.

⁽²⁾ Refer to Assessment Engineer's Report for descriptions of Land Use code and Land Use Factor.

⁽³⁾ Refer to Assessment Engineer's Report for applicable Benefit Factor.

⁽⁴⁾ FY 2017 is the City's Fiscal Year 2017 which begins July 1, 2016 and ends June 30, 2017.